
 
 
 
 
 

1480 Harbour Drive 

Wilmington, NC 28401-7776 

 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING 
Monday, March 13, 2023, 11:00 A.M. 

AGENDA 

 
Items marked with *** are actionable items that require a vote. 

Members of the public are invited to view a live video stream of the meeting on our Facebook page. Public comments 
received by email to main@capefearcog.org or by mail to 1480 Harbour Dr, Wilmington, NC, 28401 at least 24 hours 

prior to the meeting will be presented to the Executive Committee. For further information Call 910-395-4553. 

1. Invocation & Pledge 

2. Approval of Agenda *** 

3. Approval Minutes (see attachment) *** 
a. January 9, 2023 

4. Finance Report  
a. Budget Report through January 31, 2023 (see attachment) *** 

5. Staff Reports 
a. Executive Director 

i. Contracts Summary (see attachment) 
ii. Annual Meeting survey results 

b. Area Agency on Aging 
c. Homeless Continuum of Care 
d. Local Government Services 
e. Workforce Development 

6. Forum Update 

7. Chairman & Member Comments 

8. Adjourn 

Next Meeting: Regular Scheduled Executive Committee meeting, Monday, May 8, 2023, at 11:00 
AM. 

mailto:main@capefearcog.org


Page Left Blank On Purpose 



 
1480 Harbour Drive 

Wilmington, NC 28401-7776 
 

 

 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING 
January 9, 2023 • 11:00 AM 

MINUTES 

Executive Committee Present: 
Teresa Batts*  Brenda Bozeman Lavern Coleman Jan Dawson*   Mike Forte 
Deb Hays  Jackie Newton    

Executive Committee Absent: 
Lamont Grate  Charlie Rivenbark 

Other General Membership Delegates Present: 
Joseph Hatem, M.D.* J. Alan Holden*  Glenn Marshall* Ryan Merrill* 

CFCOG Staff Present:     
Ginger Brick  Patrick Flanagan Judy Herring  Wes MacLeod  Holly Pilson 
April Radford  Allen Serkin  Dawn Tucker 
Guests Present: 
Martin Cooke*  Noel Fox* 

Members and others who participated remotely are indicated with an asterisk (*). 
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Call to Order, Welcome and Roll Call 

Mr. Forte called the meeting to order & welcomed everyone at 11:04 AM.  

1. Invocation and Pledge 

Ms. Bozeman led the invocation and Pledge of Allegiance. 

2. Approval of Agenda 

Mr. Forte asked if there were any amendments to the agenda.  There being none, a motion by Ms. Hays, 
seconded by Ms. Newton, to approve the agenda carried unanimously. Ayes: Ms. Batts, Ms. Bozeman, Mr. 
Coleman, Ms. Dawson, Mr. Forte, Ms. Hays, and Ms. Newton. Nays: None. Absent: Mr. Grate and Mr. 
Rivenbark. 

3. Approval of Minutes 

Mr. Forte asked if there were any corrections to the minutes. There being none, a motion by Mr. Coleman, 
seconded by Ms. Hays, to approve the December 12, 2022, minutes carried unanimously Ayes: Ms. Batts, 
Ms. Bozeman, Mr. Coleman, Ms. Dawson, Mr. Forte, Ms. Hays, and Ms. Newton. Nays: None. Absent: Mr. 
Grate and Mr. Rivenbark. 

4. Finance Reports 

Mr. Tucker presented the Budget Report through November 30, 2022. Ms. Tucker addressed questions from 
the Executive Committee. A motion by Ms. Bozeman, seconded by Mr. Coleman, to accept the Budget Report 
carried unanimously Ayes: Ms. Batts, Ms. Bozeman, Mr. Coleman, Ms. Dawson, Mr. Forte, Ms. Hays, and Ms. 
Newton. Nays: None. Absent: Mr. Grate and Mr. Rivenbark. 

Ms. Tucker then presented Budget Ordinance Amendment #4. Ms. Brick and Ms. Tucker addressed questions 
from the Executive Committee. A motion by Ms. Bozeman, seconded by Ms. Newton, to approve the budget 
ordinance amendment carried unanimously. Ayes: Ms. Batts, Ms. Bozeman, Mr. Coleman, Ms. Dawson, Mr. 
Forte, Ms. Hays, and Ms. Newton. Nays: None. Absent: Mr. Grate and Mr. Rivenbark. 



 

 

5. 2023 Executive Committee and Officers Nominations 

Mr. Forte presented the 2023 Executive Committee and Officers nominations. A motion by Ms. Bozeman, 
seconded by Mr. Forte, carried unanimously to adopt the slate of 2023 Executive Committee and Officers 
forwarded from the Nominating Committee. Ayes: Ms. Batts, Ms. Bozeman, Mr. Coleman, Ms. Dawson, Mr. 
Forte, Ms. Hays, and Ms. Newton. Nays: None. Absent: Mr. Grate and Mr. Rivenbark. 

2023 Executive Committee and Officers Nominations: 

2023 Executive Committee Automatic Members 
Mike Forte   Brunswick Co. 
Lavern Coleman  Columbus Co. 
Deb Hays   New Hanover Co. 
Jackie Newton  Pender Co. 

2023 Executive Committee Municipal Nominees 
Brenda Bozeman  Brunswick Co. Municipal (Leland)  
Lamont Grate  Columbus Co. Municipal (Tabor City)  
Charlie Rivenbark  New Hanover Co. Municipal (Wilmington) 
Jan Dawson  Pender Co. Municipal (Burgaw) 
Teresa Batts  Municipal At-Large (Surf City) 

2023 CFCOG General Membership Officer Nominees 
Chair   Mike Forte 
Vice Chair   Deb Hays 
Secretary-Treasurer Charlie Rivenbark 

6. Approval of Annual Meeting Agenda 

Mr. Serkin presented the draft Annual Meeting Agenda and requested approval from the Executive 

Committee. A motion from Ms. Newton, seconded by Ms. Bozeman, to approve the proposed Annual 

Meeting Agenda carried unanimously. Ayes: Ms. Batts, Ms. Bozeman, Mr. Coleman, Ms. Dawson, Mr. Forte, 

Ms. Hays, and Ms. Newton. Nays: None. Absent: Mr. Grate and Mr. Rivenbark. 

7. Lunch Break 

8. Staff Reports 

Mr. Serkin presented the Executive Director report including the contract summary. Mr. Serkin presented the 

acronym cheat sheet to the Executive Committee, informed them that he will be on vacation the following week, 

congratulated Ms. Batts on being appointed as Mayor of Surf City and informed the Executive Committee of her 

swearing-in ceremony the following day.  Mr. Serkin proposed that the Annual Meeting speaker be Linda 

Thompson, Chief Diversity and Equity Officer at New Hanover County, and requested feedback from the 

Executive Committee who agreed to invite Ms. Thompson to be the guest speaker.  Mr. Serkin informed the 

Executive Committee we would be presenting an introduction to the CFCOCG to new Executive Committee 

members Mr. Coleman, Ms. Hays, and Ms. Newton after this meeting and invited anyone to attend.  

Mr. Serkin addressed questions. No action taken. 

Ms. Pilson presented the Area Agency on Aging report. Ms. Pilson addressed no questions. No action taken. 

Ms. Herring presented the Continuum of Care report. Ms. Herring and Mr. Serkin addressed questions. No 
action taken. 

Mr. MacLeod presented the Local Government Services report. Mr. MacLeod asked Mr. Flanagan to 
present an RPO update to the Executive Committee. There were no questions. No action taken. 



 
1480 Harbour Drive 

Wilmington, NC 28401-7776 
 

 

 

Ms. Brick presented the Workforce Development report. Ms. Brick addressed questions from the Executive 
Committee. No action taken. 

9. Forum Update 

There was no Forum meeting since the last Executive Committee meeting, therefore there was nothing to 
report. 

10. Chairman and Member Comments 

Mr. Forte welcomed Mr. Coleman, Ms. Hays, and Ms. Newton to the Executive Committee, congratulated 
Ms. Batts on being appointed Mayor of the Town of Surf City, and thanked Ms. Hays for accepting the request 
to be the CFCOG Vice-Chair. Mr. Forte thanked Mr. Serkin for the acronym list. Mr. Forte asked the 
committee about changing the times of their meetings to noon or leaving the set time at 11:00 AM. The 
Executive Committee agreed to keep the 11:00 AM scheduled time.  Mr. Forte reminded Executive 
Committee of the February 23rd Annual Meeting. 

There were no other comments. 

11. Adjournment 

Ms. Hays motioned to adjourn the meeting. The meeting was adjourned at 12:27 PM. 

Respectfully submitted,      

____________________________________   ___________________________________ 
April D. Radford, Clerk to the Board    Mike Forte, Chairman 



Page Left Blank On Purpose 



Cash Balance in Bank 137,876       

North Carolina Cash Management Investments 720,210       

Total Cash on Hand 858,085$     

Adjusted Jul - Jan Reserve Remaining Percent

Departments Budget Revenues Balance Budget Received

Continuum of Care 812,508$            220,017$          142,738$      449,753$        33%
Local Gov Services 1,810,738$         298,986            915,898        595,854           33%
Area Agency on Aging 7,463,464$         2,690,306        149,250        4,623,908       37%
Workforce Development 5,264,151$         1,624,020        999,787        2,640,344       38%
General Fund 42,000                 190,307            141,962        (6,345)              103%

Total Revenues 15,392,861$       5,023,635$      2,349,635$   8,309,859$     39%

Beginning Jul - Jan Reserve Remaining Percent

Departments Budget Expenditures Balance Budget Expended

CoC Administration 91,172$               56,284$            34,888$           62%
COVID Motel Shelter Program 30,845                 28,204              2,641               91%
NHC-Non-County Agency Funding 3,522                   3,522                -                   100%
ESG - CARES 43,155                 9,862                16,627           16,666             37%
ESG 283,287               79,848              99,314           104,125           43%
ESG - ADM 15,396                 4,060                11,336             26%
HUD - Perm. Supportive Housing 241,120               53,159              10,750           177,211           23%
HUD - HMIS/Coordinated Entry 54,375                 6,260                6,740             41,374             13%
HUD - Planning 49,635                 24,430              9,307             15,898             61%

Continuum of Care 812,508               265,630            142,738        404,139           40%

Planning Services 365,256               181,194            184,062           50%
Rural Planning Org 212,969               135,105            77,864             63%
Disaster Recovery 331,250               10,324              194,750        126,176           8%
MOTSU Implementation 22,479                 6,350                13,806           2,323               73%
LGS Special Projects 294,816               65,341              187,010        42,465             61%
LGS-ARPA 583,969               26,884              520,332        36,753             42%

Local Gov Services 1,810,738           425,199            915,898        469,642           48%

Aging Planning & Admin. 403,892               204,847            199,045           51%
Ombudsman & Elder Abuse 220,603               130,708            89,895             59%
Project Care 109,000               56,968              52,032             52%
Family Caregiver Support 122,204               73,003             49,201             60%
AAA Funds to Counties 4,234,333           2,049,843        2,184,490       48%
COVID-19 Vaccine Funds 2,432                   2,432                -                   100%
AAA ARP 2,371,000           214,768           149,250       2,006,982       10%

Area Agency on Aging 7,463,464           2,732,569        149,250        4,581,645       37%

WIOA - Admin 528,972             198,014            165,654        165,304           55%
WIOA - Adult 1,442,748           541,063            216,156        685,529           44%
WIOA - Dislocated Worker 983,246               350,081            199,254        433,911           45%
WIOA - IWTG 68,000                 68,000             0%
WIOA - Youth 1,758,399           592,657           418,723       747,019           44%
BSR Grant 20,000                 20,000             0%
Infrastructure Grant 10,502                 10,501             0                       100%
WF ARPA Grant 450,000               450,000           0%
WIOA-Finish Line Grant 2,284                   2,284               -                   100%

Workforce Development 5,264,151           1,694,601        999,787        2,569,763       40%

General Operations 42,000                 4                        -                 41,996             0%
General Fund 42,000                 4                        -                 41,996             0%

Total Expenditures 15,392,861$       5,118,002$      2,207,673$   8,067,185$     39%

Administration 465,042               251,856            -                 213,186           54%
*Administrative costs are allocated to and included in the department, program or project budgets.

Budget & Actual Expenditures

CAPE FEAR COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS
Cash Balance and

Budget/Expenditure Comparison
FY 2022-2023 (as of January 31, 2023)  UNAUDITED

Cash Balance

Budget & Actual Revenues



Page Left Blank On Purpose 



CFCOG Contract Summary

Contracts Entered Since Prior Report

Dept. Program Contract Name or Description Other Party $ to CFCOG  $ to Other Party 

 $ to Subgrantee/ 

Subcontractor Start Date End Date

Funding 

Availability 

Clause (Y/N)

Prior 

Reimbursement 

Clause (Y/N)

CFCOG 

Matching 

Funds (Y/N)

COC NC ESG Emergency Solutions Grant 2022 Budget Relignment NC DAAS 175,651.00$                                            113,096.00$           12/1/2022 12/31/2022 NA NA N

COC ESG-CV ESG COVID-19 Grant Budget Amendment NCDHHS 175,000.00$                                                                         7/1/2020 6/30/2023 NA NA N

LGS LGS Columbus County Planning & Zoning Technical Services Columbus Co Hourly 7/22/2022 6/30/2023 NA NA N

WFD Formula WIOA One-Stop Operator Amendment Eckerd Connects                            $            187,500.00                              7/1/2022 6/30/2023 N/A N/A N/A

AAA HCCBG Senior Center General Purpose - Columbus Co. Columbus County                            $              34,307.00                              7/1/2022 6/30/2023 Y N N

COC PSH PSH Rental Assistance Client: HMIS #136382 1519 Lake Branch Dr. Wilmington LLC  $                7,320.00 1/1/2023 12/31/2023 Y N N

COC PSH PSH Rental Assistance Client: HMIS #108166 1519 Lake Branch Dr. Wilmington LLC  $                9,120.00 11/17/2022 10/16/2023 Y N N

COC NC ESG Emergency Solutions Grant 2023 NC DAAS 176,420.00$                                            104,112.00$           1/1/2023 12/31/2023 NA NA N

COC PSH PSH Rental Assistance Client: HMIS #291267 1519 Lake Branch Dr. Wilmington LLC  $                7,716.00 12/1/2022 11/30/2023 Y N N

COC PSH PSH Rental Assistance Client: HMIS # 461070 1519 Lake Branch Dr. Wilmington LLC  $                6,816.00 2/1/2023 1/31/2024 Y N N

COC PSH PSH Rental Assistance Client: HMIS #463461 1519 Lake Branch Dr. Wilmington LLC  $                7,644.00 1/25/2023 1/24/2024 Y N N

COC PSH PSH Rental Assistance Client: HMIS #521159 1519 Lake Branch Dr. Wilmington LLC  $                7,944.00 2/1/2023 1/31/2024 Y N N

ADM Admin Brunswick Sr. Resources Center Rental - Annual Dinner Brunswick Senior Resources, Inc.  $                    850.00 2/23/2023 2/23/2023 N N N

ADM Admin Annual IT Services Computer Connections, Inc.                            $              11,258.00                              1/1/2023 12/31/2023 N N N

COC PSH PSH Rental Assistance Client: HMIS #532768 (terminated) Village of Greenfield  $                3,310.00 8/1/2022 12/31/2022 Y N N

COC ESG-CV ESG COVID-19 Grant Amendment Budget Realignment NCDHHS 175,000.00$                                                                         1/1/2023 6/30/2023 NA NA N

COC PSH PSH Rental Assistance Client: HMIS #111668 Village at Greenfield  $                7,116.00 9/26/2022 9/25/2023 Y N N

AAA FCSP NHC Family Caregiver Grant - Amendment #1 New Hanover County                            $              46,000.00                              7/1/2022 6/30/2023 N/A N/A N/A

WFD ARPA NC Works ARPA Small Business Work-Based Learning Grant NC Dept. of Commerce 450,000.00$        11/1/2022 12/31/2024 NA NA N

COC ESG ESG Subaward - Good Shepherd Center Good Shepherd Center                            $              66,612.00                              1/1/2023 12/31/2023 N N N

ADM Admin Shred America LLC Service Agreement Shred America LLC  $                      63.60 2/17/2023 NA N/A N/A N/A

WFD WFD Renewal Agreement Lightcast  $              10,300.00 2/15/2023 2/14/2024 N/A N N

COC ESG ESG Subaward - Brunswick Partnership for Housing Brunswick Parternship for Housing                            $              22,500.00                              1/1/2023 12/31/2023 N N N

COC ESG ESG Subaward - Coastal Horizons Center Coastal Horizons Center  $              15,000.00 1/1/2023 12/31/2023 N N N

LGS RPO NC 210/East Coast Greenway Feasibility Study - Amendment #2 McAdams                                                                                            3/8/2022 3/31/2023 NA N N

AAA HCCBG Senior Center General Purpose - NH Co. New Hanover County                            $              14,535.00                              7/1/2022 6/30/2023 Y N N

1,152,071.00$    465,911.60$            217,208.00$           

DEPARTMENTS PROGRAMS OTHER ACRONYMS

AAA: Area Agency on Aging EBHB: Evidence-Based Health Promotion (OAA Title III-D) DHHS: NC Dept. of Health & Human Services

ADM: Administration ESG: Emergency Solutions Grant (HUD) HMIS: Homeless Management Information System

CoC: Homeless Continuum of Care FCSP: Family Caregiver Support Program WIOA: Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act

LGS: Local Government Services Formula: WIOA Formula Funds

WD: Workforce Development HCCBG: Home & Community Care Block Grant

LCA: Local Contact Agency

MIPPA: Medicare Improvements for Patients & Providers Act

OMB: Long-term Care Ombudsman

PSH: Permanent Supportive Housing


	0 Agenda 03.13.23
	03.13.23 Agenda Packet
	0 Agenda 03.13.23
	03.13.23 Agenda Packet
	Page Left Blank On Purpose
	3a. 2023.01.09 Minutes
	Page Left Blank On Purpose
	4a. January 31 2023 Budget Report
	Page Left Blank On Purpose
	CONTRACTS





